Document Conversion and XML Generation Solution RFI Questions and Answers
	No.
	Question
	Answer

	Questions Received Through 5:00 pm, May 18, 2011

	1
	Are estimates available for number of documents and associated pages anticipated to be converted after the initial 5000 documents?
	Depending on the solutions available and cost constraints, there could be hundreds of thousands or perhaps even millions of documents that require conversion.  

	2
	Are estimates available regarding the distribution count among the various document types described in the RFI?
	See question above for the overall numbers.  In terms of distribution, the most common document types are NPL (non patent literature) and foreign patents.  It may be possible, for some of these, to obtain the original versions and so conversion will be easier.  See table below for distribution of percentage of doc codes for one kind of examination (ex parte reexamination) for the most frequent 30 types of doc codes for approximately 2000 cases.


	3
	Is the rendering software a deliverable of the anticipated solicitation?
	 If the vendor provides this service in addition to those asked explicitly, it would be useful to hear about those services.

	4
	Are both XML and resulting PDF’s deliverables of the anticipated solicitation?
	The RFI asks vendors to address whichever aspects of the RFI that their services can handle.  In some cases, PDFs are the input to the system and so PDF output may not be needed.  In other cases, forms that are received as image and subsequently converted to XML may desire to be rendered both as HTML and PDF.  

	5
	For the Phase I 5,000 documents, what is the average number of pages per document?
	See table below

	6
	For the Phase I 5For the Phase I 5,000 document activity, when does USPTO expect the effort to being?
	Sometime in June or July 2011.

	7
	Can USPTO clarify the expectations around the ad hoc collections of 5000 documents? Specifically, is the goal to convert existing tiffs which currently have no textual data associated with them (as a deliverable) or to use the 5000 documents to validate the approach (e.g. using 5000 documents which have been processed using the existing processes)? 
	The goal is to convert existing TIFF documents for immediate use.

	8
	Can the respondents assume that pricing is incremental to existing processes, for example, the solution includes the hardware, software, and labor costs associated with scanning documents (as the process exists today).  If not, can anticipated volumes for the longer term solutions be provided?    
	Yes, the respondents can assume that pricing is incremental, meaning they can provide a separate pricing for long term, very high volume conversion for later stages as compared to the short term phase’s cost.

	9
	How many documents are in the repository?
	It is unclear what is being referred to as “the repository”.  The USPTO has a very large number of documents that are stored internally.  No estimate is available at this time.

	10
	What is the average page count for a document in the repository?
	See table below.

	11
	Is there more than one repository? 


	See 9.

	12
	Where is the repository located? 


	See 9.

	13
	Can the process for converting the initial 5,000 documents be different than the final production conversion process? 


	Yes.

	14
	Can the initial 5,000 document be taken off-site and processed remotely?
	Yes, most of them can be as they are all in TIFF format, already scanned. There may be a few confidential documents that require special handling.

	15
	Understanding that there will be multiple formats for conversion, are you able to provide an estimate of how many of each type of individual formats? 
	Not at this time.

	16
	Will there be a government provided schema, taxonomy, repository to organize / retrieve this data once it has been converted to XML?  If so, when will those tools be provided?
	The processing of handling documents after they have been converted is outside the scope of this RFI.

	17
	Repository - Where will these images be hosted?  
	The image that will require scanning are currently housed in production systems.  Vendors can expect to receive the images in a standard format on suitably dense optical media.

	18
	 Is the 15 page limit inclusive of the cover page?
	The 15 page limit does not include resumes, cover letter and acronym list.

	19
	 Section 1.0 clearly states the USPTO’s objectives for the project.  In paragraph 3 of this section, please confirm that items (1) and (2) correlate to the short term approach and item (3) to the long term approach.
	Each part is a different stage and time duration.  Part (1) is very short term, just a few months; part (2) is approximately 2 years and part (3) is likely to be ongoing.

	20
	Section 1.4 requests two ROMs for the eight items listed in this section.  Several of these items will be difficult to estimate.  If the above statement is correct, would USPTO accept two consolidated ROMs (one for the short-term, less automated step for the September deadline and one for a longer term, more fully automated approach) rather than the 2 ROMs for each of the eight items? 
	Yes, either way is acceptable.

	21
	Section 1.0 states that "there will continue to be a need for scanning..."  Does the USPTO request that our response to this RFI discuss our ability to provide paper scanning capabilities or will the USPTO provide this capability outside this project?  If paper scanning is anticipated as part of the longer term solution, can USPTO please provide an estimate of the number of anticipated paper documents?
	Respondents are requested to address only those parts of the work that they are positioned to address.  It may be the case that multiple vendors are required to address all of the work.  So, for example, a vendor that does not specialize in scanning is advised not to make an estimate for this part of the work.
It is difficult to project how much incoming material will remain in paper after further automation has been introduced.  The goal is to reduce incoming paper to as few items as possible.

	22
	Can USPTO please provide an estimate of the number of electronic documents that will require OCR (but not scanning) and conversion to the new XML schema as part of the longer term approach?
	No estimate is available at this time.

	23
	Can USPTO please provide an estimate of the number of OCR'd documents that will only require conversion to the new XML schema as part of the longer term approach?
	No estimate is available at this time.

	24
	Can USPTO please clarify its intent in requesting automatic generation of schemas?  Schemas are typically pre-defined for a given document type and not automatically generated.  Is the intent to automate the determination and assignment of documents to the appropriate schemas?
	Some vendors may have the capability to do this work with intelligent processing techniques.

	25
	Are the XML4IP schemas stable? If not, when are they expected to be?
	These schemas are not stable at this time.  No estimate of when they will be is available.

	26
	Does the PTO’s concern in regard to “fidelity of document layout markup” have to do with traceability issues, visual fidelity issues, conversion verification, some combination of these, or something else?
	When USPTO personnel communicate with external stakeholders, there is often a need for both parties to refer to a portion of information within a document.   There needs to be confidence that both parties are referring to the same information.  In today’s world that still requires references to page numbers, section numbers, or other markers much of the time.
So the answer is primarily visual fidelity, but of course it is easier to verify conversion if these markers are available as well.

	27
	When the PTO references “5000 documents” on page 1 of the RFI, does this mean 5000 file wrappers or 5000 individual documents?
	It refers to 5000 documents, for a smaller number of cases (file wrappers).  This is a rough estimate.

	28
	Whether or not the reference to 5000 documents means 5000 file wrappers, what is the anticipated mix of doc codes within the 5000 documents?
	See the table below to see the most common doc codes and their percentages in the collection.

	29
	The RFI refers in more than one place to translation of non-English content. Does this refer either exclusively or at least primarily to NPL documents, or is translation of foreign language content in other document types also contemplated?
	This refers primarily to NPL and foreign patent documents, although translation may already be available for these documents and this is not a major emphasis of this RFI.  It is important that appropriate character coding can be supported.

	30
	Does question #8 in section “1.4 Questions for Response” on page 6 of the RFI refer exclusively to NPL documents or are other document types also contemplated in this description?
	Other document types as well: patent specifications, remarks from attorneys, court documents, and other documents may contain this kind of non-textual information.

	31
	Method for and accuracy of schema creation step (from page 6).
	This question is unclear.

	32
	Fidelity of document layout markup.
	This question is unclear.

	33
	What exactly do "schema creation step" and the "document layout markup" mean in this context? These terms are not used elsewhere in the RFI. Some sort of explanation or definition would be helpful.
	In section 1.4, “schema creation step” refers to the first sentence in section 1.1, “The ideal solution … automatically or semi-automatically produce a meaningful XML schema.”  Probably very few vendors will have this capability.  The “document layout markup” refers to the second paragraph of section 1.1.

	34
	Please confirm that the PTO is looking for an XML document with enough structure applied to the components so that rendering via a style sheet or other rendering mechanism can in fact reproduce a look similar to the original document.  If that is the case, is PTO also expecting the development of the style sheets to display these XML documents?


	Yes, it is the case that the XML will need to be rendered in a visible format.  Please see question 3. 

	35
	Is PTO looking to translate characters when some character to character equivalence can be established, or is actual language translation required regardless of character set?


	Some vendors may have language translation capabilities and USPTO would like to know about this as part of this RFI, if applicable.  Conversion tools must be able to handle a wide range of character types, but character-to-character translation is not requested.

	36
	Do the 5,000 documents mentioned in the ad hoc initial processing collection represent all document types referenced in section 1.2 of the RFI, or are they a subset?  In the collection of 5,000 documents are some of the documents types listed in section 1.2 more prevalent than others and if so which ones - or can the PTO provide a distribution by document type?
	See the table below.  There are many more doc codes in the collection of 5000 documents than those listed explicitly in this RFI.  To see the full range refer to the bulk download sources referenced in the RFI.

	37
	How far back in time does the Patent Office intend to go with legacy documents?
	That is unknown at this time.

	38
	Are samples available for document type RXR.NF?
	See the download links referred to in the RFI for samples of all doc code types.  See question 36.

	39
	Are estimates available regarding the distribution count among the various document types described in the RFI for the initial 5,000 pages as well?
	See question 36.

	40
	Will the document conversion and XML generation solution be limited to the sample doc codes?  Or will additional doc codes be introduced once a solution is developed?
	Additional doc codes are required.  See question 36.

	41
	In the doc code TRNA samples are all documents misclassified except for TRNA_10-30-2002_90006430 and TRNA_01-10-2007_90005710?  Or are the other documents examples of the doc code being "assigned to other kinds of transmittals"?
	There are many types of transmittal documents and TRNA is a catch-all description.   TRNA_06-04-2007_90006209 is mislabeled.

	42
	Sample document TRNA_08-01-2007_90006317 references an attached document.  The transmittal sheet indicates the facsimile is 3 pages total, implying the attachment is a two page document.  Why is the attached document not included with the TRNA coded document?  The attached document is a request for a patent reexamination which, based on the description in the RFI, is the purpose of the TRNA doc code.  Is the referenced attachment stored separately under this doc code?  Are cover sheets always stored separately from the reference document as appears to have been done in this case?
	In TRNA_08-01-2007_90006317, the fax pages were broken out to other document codes that are not assigned TRNA.

	43
	The first paragraph of RFI section 1.0 states that the "...new system will replace documents that are currently represented as scanned TIFF images.".  In the eighth paragraph of section 1.1, bullet 5 states that solution variation may vary based on "The quality of the scan for those documents that are stored as scans".  What are the other document formats that may be encountered?
	Some document are stored as PDF, sometimes text-backed, and sometimes not.   Most documents referred to in this RFI are represented currently either as TIFF or PDF.

	44
	For the RXAF/DR doc code, is the technical white paper document (RXAF_DR_08-16-2005_90006676) a misclassified document?
	Yes, that appears to be misclassified.  These codes are complex and in many cases difficult to understand.  USPTO will work with vendors as required to clarify and answer classification questions.


	Doc Code
	Description
	Avg Num Pages
	% of all Documents

	NPL
	Non Patent Literature
	35.70
	0.521

	FOR
	Foreign Reference
	24.53
	0.066

	N417
	EFS Acknowledgement Receipt
	2.79
	0.038

	RXC/SR
	Reexam Certificate of Service
	1.22
	0.038

	IDS
	Information Disclosure Statement Form (SB08)
	8.47
	0.018

	RXFILJKT
	Paper Reexam Jacket is scanned
	2.54
	0.018

	AF/D
	Rule 130, 131, or 132 Affidavits
	24.57
	0.018

	RXNOCP
	Notice of concurrent proceeding(s)
	36.35
	0.017

	RXAF/DR
	Rexam -- Affidavit/Decl/Exhibit Filed by 3rd party
	32.38
	0.013

	RXOSUB.R
	Receipt of Orig. Ex Parte Request by Third Party
	44.57
	0.012

	RXLITSR
	Rexam Litigation Search  Conducted
	50.90
	0.012

	WFEE
	Fee Worksheet (PTO-06)
	1.94
	0.011

	BIB
	Bibliographic data sheet
	1.02
	0.011

	1449
	List of references cited by application and considered by examiner
	6.49
	0.010

	SRFW
	Seach info on File Wrapper
	1.30
	0.009

	REM
	Applicant arguemnts or remarks made in an amendment
	18.86
	0.009

	TRAN.LET
	Transmittal letter
	2.58
	0.008

	CLM
	Claims
	11.16
	0.008

	RXPATENT
	Copy of patent for which reexam is requested
	23.46
	0.007

	RXLET.
	Reexam Miscellaneous Incoming Letter
	7.07
	0.007

	RXNREQAU
	Notice of assignment of reexamination request
	1.01
	0.007

	RXNREQFD
	Notice of reexamination request filing date
	1.04
	0.007

	RXTTLRPT
	Title Report
	1.52
	0.007

	TRNA
	Transmittal of new application
	2.29
	0.006

	RXREXO
	Determination -- Reexam Ordered
	15.05
	0.006

	EXIN
	Examiner Interview Summary Record (PTOL-308)
	5.56
	0.006

	RXR.NF
	Rexam -- Nonfinal action
	26.66
	0.006

	A...
	Amendment/Req consideration -- After Non-Final Reject
	6.88
	0.005

	FWCLM
	Index of claims
	1.35
	0.004
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